
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343276 Web: www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Crime & Disorder 
(Overview & Scrutiny) 

Committee 
 

Councillor C S McLean (Chairman) 
Councillor A S Sandhu, MBE (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor B Garden 
Councillor A Gaskin 

Councillor K J Grehan 
Councillor P M Harman 

Councillor D J Mote 
Councillor T Oliver 

 
 
 

A virtual meeting of the above Committee will be held at 5 p.m. on 

 
Wednesday 10 February 2021 

 

 
Strategic Director (Internal Services) 

(2 February 2021) 
 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



 

 
CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

Wednesday 10 February 2021 
 
 

Viewing this meeting on YouTube 

This meeting may be viewed on YouTube by clicking on, and opening, the link 
below: 
 
https://youtu.be/2z49nJXCDTk 
 

1. Apologies For Absence   

 

 To receive any apologies of absence. 
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 

 To receive any declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of any Grants of Dispensation by the Strategic Director 
(External Services).  
 

 

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 29 July 2020  (Pages 1 - 
20) 

 

4. Urgent Items   

 

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are any 
urgent items and their position on the agenda. 
 

 

5. To consider references from other Committees (if any)   

 

 There are currently no references from other Committees for 
Members to consider. 
 

 

6. Chairman's Update   

 

7. Regulation 9 Notice (Forward Plan)  (Pages 21 
- 22) 

 

 To consider any issues arising from the Regulation 9 Notice (Forward 
Plan) for the period 14 January 2021 to 31 May 2021.  

 

https://youtu.be/2z49nJXCDTk


 

 

8. Dartford Community Safety Partnership (CSP)  (Pages 23 
- 26) 

 

 To note the dissolution of the Dartford & Gravesham CSP and the 
formation of the single Dartford CSP. 
 

 

9. Presentation from KCC Trading Standards - Fraud in times of 
COVID-19  

 

 

10. Kent & Medway Police and Crime Panel (PCP) Update  (Pages 27 
- 34) 

 

 To receive a verbal update from Councillor R J Wells, Cabinet 
Portfolio Holder for Community Safety and Dartford representative on 
the PCP, regarding the Panel proceedings due to be held on 4 
February 2021, and to note the published Minutes of the Panel 
meeting held on 8 September 2020. 
 

 

11. Review of Committee Work Plan for the 2021-22 Municipal Year 
and Beyond  

(Pages 35 
- 38) 

 

12. Dartford Community Safety Partnership (CSP) Strategic 
Assessment 2020  

(Pages 39 
- 40) 

 

 To consider the Dartford Community Safety Partnership Strategic 
Assessment 2020 (Item A in EXEMPT papers). 
 

 

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

TO RESOLVE: That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended), the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item 
of business on the grounds that the material involved was provided to the Council on 
an ‘In-Confidence’ basis.  
 

A. Dartford Community Safety Partnership (CSP) Strategic 
Assessment 2020 

(Pages 41 
- 126) 

 

 



 

1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) 
Committee held on Wednesday 29 July 2020. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor C S McLean (Chairman) 
Councillor A S Sandhu, MBE (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor B Garden 
Councillor A Gaskin 
Councillor K J Grehan 
Councillor P M Harman 
Councillor D J Mote 
Councillor T Oliver 
 
ABSENT: 
 

None 
 

 Dartford Borough Council Officers:- 
 
Sheri Green  – Strategic Director (External) 
Mark 
Salisbury 

 – EARS/CSU Manager 

Tony Henley  – Community Safety Manager, CSU 
Karen 
Radford 

 – DTAC Intelligence Manager, CSU 

Jade 
Ransley 

 – Community Safety Officer, CSU 

 
 
CABINET MEMBERS: 
 

Councillor Ann Allen MBE, (Youth, Health & 
Wellbeing), Cllr. Richard Wells (Community Safety & 
Dartford Rep. Kent Police & Crime Panel) 
 

 
PRES TO RESPOND TO ISSUES RAISED BY THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 

 
Neil Louden  – Dartford & Gravesham District 

Commander, Kent Police 
Sarah Rivett  – Dartford Neighbourhood Inspector. 

Kent Police 
Rob Slade  – Prevent Officer (OGD), Kent & 

Essex Police 
 

 
30. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
The Chairman, Councillor CS McLean (Lead Member for Equalities, Cohesion 
& Society), welcomed all Committee Members to the first virtual meeting of 
the Council’s Crime & Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) Committee via the 
remote Zoom platform, and confirmed that the proceedings were being 
screened live to the public via the YouTube link published on the Council’s 
website. 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

2 

He welcomed the virtual participation of the Strategic Director (External 
Services), the EARS/CSU Manager, Community Safety Manager, DTAC 
Intelligence Manager and Community Safety Officer, and the virtual presence 
of the Democratic Services and Transformation Managers to co-ordinate the 
IT arrangements for the proceedings, and the Committee Co-ordinator to clerk 
the meeting. 
 
He also welcomed and thanked the Dartford & Gravesham District 
Commander, and the Dartford CSU Inspector, for joining the remote 
proceedings via the secure Kent Police platform, and the Kent and Essex 
Police Prevent Officer [Organised Crime Group (OCG)], for also joining the 
remote proceedings to give his presentation [Min. No. 36 refers]. 
 
There were no apologies for absence, and at the suggestion of the Chairman, 
it was agreed that Members would introduce themselves as and when they 
spoke to contribute to the ensuing debate of the published agenda items. 
 

31. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

32. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 12 
FEBRUARY 2020  
 
A Member sought an update on two items recorded in the Minutes and 
accepted the Chairman’s proposal that his queries be addressed under the 
relevant agenda items later in the proceedings. 
 
   RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Minutes of the Committee meeting held on 12 February 2020 
be confirmed as an accurate record of those proceedings. 

 
33. URGENT ITEMS  

 
There were no urgent items for Members to consider. 
 

34. TO CONSIDER REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY)  
 
There were no references from other Committees for Members to consider. 
 

35. CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE  
 
The Chairman advised Members that Inspector Gavin Wade (Kent Police) had 
completed his tour of duty as Dartford CSU & Bluewater Inspector, and 
requested that Inspector Wade’s considerable and valued contribution to the 
work of the CSU and at Bluewater in recent years be recorded in the Minutes, 
with the Committee’s thanks and best wishes for his new assignment.  
 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

3 

He renewed his welcome to Inspector’s Wade’s successor, Insp. Sarah Rivett, 
Kent Police and wished her every success in her new role as Dartford CSU & 
Bluewater Inspector, and looked forward to working with her in the future. 
 
The Chairman advised of one change to the published agenda proceedings: 
Item 9 - Performance - would be taken in closed session at the conclusion of 
the public proceedings, together with the report appendix [EXEMPT Item A].  
  
 

36. EUROPOL COVID ASSESSMENT  
 
The Committee received a PowerPoint presentation from Mr Rob Slade, 
Prevent Officer [Organised Crime Group], Serious Crime Directorate (SCG), 
Kent and Essex Police, which summarised the Europol Assessment of 
COVID-19 in terms of the impact of the pandemic on particular crime types 
and the measures authorities needed to take to combat those effects. 
Members had received copies of the presentation material in advance 
[Agenda Item 7 p.15-31 refer].  
 
Rob Slade informed Members that his appointment as Prevent Officer [OCG] 
for Kent & Essex Police covered the key areas of cybercrime, fraud, 
organised criminal gangs and modern day slavery, not the Prevent counter-
terrorism programme. His role was to educate and ensure good practice, 
drawing on the outcomes of the April 2020 Europol Conference on COVID-19 
and input from the National Crime Agency (NCA), to provide an insight into 
effectively policing these major crime areas in the context of the Corona virus 
pandemic. He informed Members that serious and organised crime in the UK 
was an estimated   £37 billion pound operation, involving 50,000 people in 
427 mapped Organised Criminal Groups, with 30 operating in Kent. 
 
He gave a verbal summary of his PowerPoint presentation to Members under 
the following three distinct phases of the pandemic: 
 

 Phase 1: Current Situation – Lockdown 

 Phase 2: Mid-Term – Easing of Lockdown 

 Phase 3: Long-Term impact post Lockdown 
 
Members also received detailed information regarding Cybercrime, 
Counterfeit and Substandard goods, Economic and financial crime, Drugs, 
Modern Slavery/Human Trafficking, Organised property crime and the 
resultant impact of COVID-19 on the UK economy (short and medium term) 
as set out  in his presentation [agenda pages 19-31 specifically refer]. 
 
In concluding his presentation, Rob Slade summarised his role as Prevent 
Officer [OCG] in the Serious Crime Directorate as one of education and 
advocating good informed operating practices, to enable the Kent and Essex 
Police forces to ring-fence resources at the District level, to combat cyber and 
fraud crime and combat the operations of Gangs and Human Traffickers.  
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

4 

The Chairman thanked Mr Slade for a very comprehensive and detailed 
presentation, and invited Members to pose questions for his response and 
comment by the District Commander and the CSM as appropriate. 
 
A Ward Member for Stone House expressed her particular concern over 
telephone fraud in her area. She praised the work of the police and banks in 
terms of follow-up action, but asked what measures could best be deployed to 
warn residents of such criminal activity before they fell victim to it. 
 
Mr Slade advised Members that he knew from his previous role as a Kent 
Police Inspector, including service in Dartford, that Parish Council newsletters, 
and visits to homes by KCC Wardens and neighbourhood PCSOs were all 
measures that served to warn residents. Fraud warning leaflets were also 
issued by SOC panels who would work with local Councillors at the Ward 
level to combat fraud.  
 
The CSM supported Mr Slade in his comments to Members over how best to 
warn their constituents to the dangers of telephone and other fraud activities 
targeted at the elderly and vulnerable, which now had an added COVID-19 
element. He advised that the CSU held daily tasking meetings with all CSP 
partners and details of known frauds (scams) were posted on the Council’s 
website to warn and inform members of the public. The Council’s CSU Team 
were working with KCC Trading Standards to create a database of fraudsters 
operating in the Borough, but the project had been delayed by the pandemic. 
In reality, he warned that fraud offences were conducted by highly organised 
criminal gangs, who deliberately targeted and frequently re-targeted the 
elderly and most vulnerable in society. 
 
A Member for Greenhithe & Knockhall Ward noted that the London Resort 
project in the Swanscombe Peninsular was again under active consideration. 
Given the change in dynamics since 2016 and the dangers the pandemic 
posed to the project, he proposed that Members receive a further 
presentation. 
 
Mr Slade advised that the principal danger for such major projects in terms of 
fraud or corrupt activity, including the supply of labour by organised criminal 
gangs, were the long supply chains for materials and services. NCA guidance 
had issued in April 2020 in the wake of the pandemic, and the London Resort 
project would be monitored accordingly.  
 
Another Stone House Ward Member asked what measures were in place to 
tackle the issue of career criminals, and he asked whether a new approach 
was required by the CSP and its partners to address the recurrent issue. 
 
The CSM acknowledged that there was a hard core of life time criminals who 
would always seek to re-offend. He informed Members that he attended a 
number of multi-agency Panels and Forums with the Police, Probation and 
Social Services, which addressed the actions and vulnerabilities of repeat 
offenders, and sought to prevent their exploitation by criminal gangs, with 
increased resources being deployed at the District level. 

Page 4Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

5 

 
Another Greenhithe & Knockhall Ward Member expressed his concern that 
drones were being used by criminals in Greenhithe in robberies from garden 
sheds and also targeting motorcycles, following several drone sightings by 
local residents.  
 
Rob Slade said he was unware of any such activity with drones, which 
traditionally were used by organised criminal gangs to ferry drugs into prisons, 
but undertook to examine the claims and relay any findings to the Council’s 
CSU Team. The CSM said he was aware of community concern surrounding 
the use of drones by criminals, but there was no evidence that drones were 
being used by criminals in Swanscombe. He would continue to liaise with the 
police over the issue and update Members as necessary. 
 
The Vice-Chairman asked whether there was an increased risk of cybercrime 
being committed against businesses who now operated from the home 
environment [agenda p.19 – Cybercrime refers]. 
 
Mr Slade was unable to comment specifically in a Dartford context, but across 
the UK small businesses were increasingly being targeted by criminals 
presenting bogus invoices on-line, and business owners needed to be aware 
of the increase in ‘invoice crime’ and ensure all claims sent were genuine. 
 
The District Commander supported the CSM and Mr Slade in their comments 
to Members. He confirmed that there was no evidence to support the use of 
drones by criminals in Swanscombe. The police used small drones as part of 
their crime prevention measures, and police patrols in Swanscombe had been 
increased to address resident’s concerns over thefts from gardens and sheds. 
Regarding on-line or cybercrime, since lockdown on 23 March 2020 some 93 
incidents had been recorded in Dartford and only 17 cases of fraud, which 
was low in the context of Kent as a whole, and lower than Gravesend.  The 
District Commander and his police teams in Dartford and Gravesend worked 
closely with the Prevent Officer and the SCD as a whole. An increase in thefts 
from vans for tools and supplies generally had been recorded, and 
discussions were ongoing with the PCC and the Chief Constable for more 
police officers, including the new PCSO for Ebbsfleet. 
 
The Ward Member for Temple Hill expressed her surprise at the recorded 
increase in drug crime [agenda papers Item 9 – EXEMPT Appendix A refers], 
given the Government’s lock-down measures. 
 
Rob Slade advised that the lock-down measures had only impacted on the 
consumption of the softer social drugs like ecstasy, given the ban on social 
gatherings, raves etc. The market for hard drugs like cocaine and heroin and 
the supply of Weed had been unaffected, driven by consumer demand and 
the fact that it was distributed and sold surreptitiously.  
 
The Chairman thanked Mr Slade for his presentation and responses to 
Members’ questions, and the further background supplied by the CSM and 
the District Commander, in response to Members’ questions and concerns.   

Page 5 Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

6 

 
  
 

37. DARTFORD TOWN AGAINST CRIME (D-TAC) ANNUAL REPORT 
(INCLUDING SHOP SAFE SCHEME)  
 
The report from the Community Safety Manager (CSM) asked Members to 
note the progress that had been made by the Dartford Town against Crime 
(DTAC) scheme during the previous 12 months of its operation (1 July 2019 to 
30 June 2020). 
 
The report reminded Members that the DTAC scheme promoted the concept 
of a safe and secure Town Centre, and enabled partners to adopt a proactive 
approach, by allowing them to identify, target and focus on the most serious, 
prolific and professional criminals operating in Dartford, in addition to those 
engaged in petty crime and anti-social behaviour. 
 
The DTAC scheme operated as a sub-group of both the Dartford Town Centre 
Partnership and the Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Partnership; 
but with its own independent constitution, terms of reference, overseen by its 
Board of Management and active Steering Group. The DTAC Intelligence 
Manager co-ordinated the dissemination of information to promote activity that 
would result in action being taken against persistent offenders. The network of 
DTAC partners also facilitated the following measures: 
 

 preventing and detecting crime and public disorder; 

 targeting persistent offenders responsible for the majority of 
crime; 

 reducing the opportunity to commit crime; 

 assisting the apprehension and prosecution of offenders; 

 reducing retail crime losses for members; 

 creating a “safe and secure” environment for customers and 
staff; 

 reducing the fear of crime amongst the general public; 

 encouraging growth and investment in the town centre 
 
The CSM also highlighted the importance of the ‘Shop Safe Stay Safe ID 
Scheme’ element to the DTAC operation, which gave vulnerable people a 
temporary safe place to go if they became confused, scared or upset, or faced 
an emergency when out and about in the Town Centre. Vulnerable people 
could include those with a learning or physical disability, had an illness or 
severe medical condition, or had simply become lost or confused.  The ‘Shop 
Safe’ scheme had recently been re-launched following an overhaul during the 
preceding 12 months to make it compliant with the requirements of the 
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR). 
 
The Committee then received a PowerPoint presentation from the DTAC 
Intelligence Manager [distributed to Members in advance] which outlined the 
achievements of and challenges for both Schemes during the period under 

Page 6Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

7 

review, in addition to a forward look at the opportunities that the ongoing 
regeneration of the Town Centre presented to the Partnership.  
 
She advised Members that the presentation replicated the format and content 
of her 2019 submission to the Committee [Min. No. 9 refers], updated to 
reflect progress during the period under review, and the impact of COVID-19 
under the following principal headings:  
 
 

 DTAC - What is it? 

 DTAC Managers role 

 Benefits of DTAC membership 

 Membership and COVID-19 Review 

 DTAC Meetings, Board, AGM and Members; 

 Shop Safe Scheme; 

 Crimestoppers; 

 Way Forward 
 
The presentation slides gave the following detail for each heading listed 
above: 
 
DTAC Partnership 
 

• DTAC had been developed in 2003 as the result of a combined 

partnership between local businesses, police, local authority, town 

centre management and other agencies.   

• Managed by a board of management made up from the 

membership. 

• Not for profit scheme, financially supported by Dartford Council. 

The increased mobility and anonymity of criminals and their ability to travel 

widely, required new crime reduction strategies that created a hostile 

environment for local and travelling offenders alike.  Through partnership 

working, DTAC aimed to: 

• reduce crime, violence and anti-social behaviour; 

• improve public safety;  

• promote a safe environment for daily public business 

DTAC Intelligence Manager Role 

 Manage Shop Safe Scheme 

 Manage information flow between DTAC partners and the Council  

Page 7 Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

8 

 Use civil powers to deal with persistent and recidivist offenders to 

reduce crime and ASB 

 Provide intelligence via crime management system 

 Advise and train DTAC members including regular meetings/briefings 

 Identify strategies with partners to combat current crime trends 

 Work with town centre community  to deal with offenders on a daily 

basis; 

 Ensure legislative compliance. 

 

Shop Safe Stay Safe ID Scheme: DTAC/DBC partnership since 2009 

   

• Gives vulnerable people a temporary safe place to go if they are 
feeling confused, scared or upset or are facing an emergency 
when visiting the town centre. 

• Members registered with the scheme receive a personal 
identification tag/card that can be kept on their key ring.  

• Details of any existing conditions, vulnerabilities and nominated 
person kept on a secure database. 

• If in need Staff at Orchard Centre Security and the Community 
Safety Unit or CCTV at DBC are able to contact the appropriate 
person on their behalf. 

• Scheme relaunched in February 2020 to comply with new GDPR 
legislation  

• Launch affected by COVID 19, but currently the new database is 
gradually increasing in member numbers. 

 
Responding to COVID-19: Fee Review 

 

 COVID-19 could threaten the DTAC scheme if membership drops 

due to the impact lockdown has had on businesses 

 The DTAC Board have re-evaluated the pricing structure to make 

it not only fairer, but to demonstrate the support for membership 

during this recovery stage.  

 Pricing structure takes account of retail growth outside the Town 

Centre  

 DBC provides additional support through recent Government 

Funding 

Page 8Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

9 

Benefits of DTAC Membership 
 

• Provides access to an instant messaging system allowing 
members to communicate with each other quickly and effectively 
when crimes have been committed or suspects have been 
identified. 

• Weekly newsletters and intelligence bulletins. 
• Radio link to a network of cameras, security staff and Kent Police. 
• Staff training. 
• Partnership support to address the offending behaviour of those 

affecting local businesses using Criminal Legislation found in the 
Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 

• Support from the National Association Business Crime 
Partnership 

• Holding regular DTAC meetings builds a sense of community 
between members and provides; 

o Up to date intelligence on local persistent and 
transient offenders 

o Support and guidance to members 

o Relevant Training e.g. radio use, mental health, crime 
reporting, crime/evidence gathering, loss prevention 
and the deterring of offenders.  

o Encourage the use of the Intelligence Database and 
importance of completing intel/information reports. 

 
Current Membership 

 
• Currently there are 65 members on the DTAC scheme and include 

the Orchard, Priory and Prospect Place shopping Malls 

• They including day time and night time economy businesses from 

National to Local business 

• Extended radio coverage assisting growth 

• Further 31 radios provided to Council Staff and external agencies 

that provide a community role and community support 

 

Crimestoppers 
 
Dartford town centre was chosen by CrimeStoppers and Kent Police in June 
2019 to host a new initiative to display ‘most wanted’ images on digital media 
screens located in the town. This had been the first scheme of its kind in the 
county. 
 

Since 25 June 2019 images of people wanted by Kent Police appear on two 
digital media screens located in the Orchard and Priory Shopping Centres in 
the town centre, and more recently at the Police shop at Bluewater. Pictures 
rotate several times each hour, all day, every day.  It followed the successful 

Page 9 Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

10 

pilot project format, aimed at ensuring that criminals thought twice, before 
coming into Dartford, in the knowledge that their appearance might trigger 
calls and responses from local people, who recognised them from the 
screens. It was hoped that in time, the initiative will be rolled out across 
several other shopping centres and towns across the U.K. 
 
 
 
 
The Way Forward 
 

 Increase DTAC and Shop scheme membership numbers 

 Embed the Scheme within the development of the Town Centre 

 Support business recovery and new business post COVID-19 lock-
down 

 Successfully prosecute offenders in breach of Community Protection 
and Fixed Penalty Notices 

 Encourage members  to fully utilise and share all facilities on the DTAC 
intelligence system including phone app 

 Radio training to ensure better use of air time 

 Put Dartford DTAC on national map – already well known within Kent   
 
 
In response to a variety of questions from Members, the DTAC Intelligence 
Manager confirmed the following additional points: 
 

 It was proposed to extend the ‘Shop Safe’ scheme to Temple Hill and 
other areas across the Borough, in addition to the Town Centre and 
the Dementia Café who held photographs of its regular customers who 
suffered from dementia; 

 In terms of combating ASB, the DTAC scheme covered the Town 
Centre and the CSU covered all other areas of the Borough; 

 Significant progress had been made with businesses outside the Town 
Centre in the period under review, with five separate Co-op Managers 
now contemplating DTAC membership including Temple Hill, Tolbert 
Road, Swanscombe and Ebbsfleet, with a marked increase in 
feedback from businesses during lock-down.  

 
The Chairman thanked the CSM for his report and the DTAC Intelligence 
Manager for her presentation and for responding to Members’ questions. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the report and presentation recording the 
achievements of the Dartford Town against Crime Scheme [including 
the Shop Safe Stay Safe ID Scheme] during the period 1 July 2019 to 
30 June 2020. 

 

Page 10Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

11 

38. 2020 REFRESH OF DARTFORD AND GRAVESHAM CSP COMMUNITY 
SAFETY STRATEGY (2019-22)   
 
The covering report from the Community Safety Manager (CSM) enclosed for 
Members’ consideration [Appendix A to the report], the annual refresh 
document of the Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Partnership’s, 
Community Safety Strategy (2019-22).  
 
The covering report reminded Members that legislation required each 
Community Safety Partnership (CSP) to produce a Crime and Disorder 
Strategy which ran for a three year period, with an annual refresh in the 
intervening periods, and that the Strategy guided the work of the CSP’s 
partner agencies, and ensured that the focus on the CSP’s agreed priorities 
was maintained.  
 
Those priorities were assessed on an annual basis through the CSP’s annual 
Strategic Assessment document, which provided the information and analysis 
of data, used to assess whether the stated priorities in the Crime & Disorder 
Strategy (2019-22) remained relevant. The CSP had considered its 2019 
Strategic Assessment document at its meeting on 16 January 2020, and had 
incorporated the priorities identified in it, into the CSP’s Community Safety 
Plan (2019-2022), and agreed that those priorities remain unchanged. The 
Committee had considered the SA 2019 document at its meeting in February 
2020 [Min. No. 28 refers] and noted the CSP’s decision to retain its current 
priorities.  
 
Whilst the CSP had accepted that the priorities in its 2019-22 Community 
Safety Strategy remain unchanged, the Partnership had also accepted 
recommendations within the 2019 Strategic Assessment that, if achieved, 
would support the delivery of those stated priorities. The agreed 
recommendations were: 
 

• General 
o Crime Data be made available at Ward Level 
o Maintain Governance Structures 

• Violence Crime and Domestic Abuse 
o Understand disparity  between MARAC and Violent 

Crime performance 
• Persistent Anti-Social Behaviour and Environmental Crime 

o Understand performance disparity between ASB 
performance 

• Preventing Offending and Reducing Re-Offending 
o Establish close working relationship with Violence 

Reduction Unit 
• Protecting Vulnerable People 

o Continuing to develop an understanding of the impact of 
the changing demography across the CSP area. 
 

The CSM advised Members that progress against the 
recommendations listed above [report para 3.5, agenda p.39 also 

Page 11 Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

12 

refers], had been impeded by the Corona virus pandemic. In particular, 
changes to the Kent Police database had meant that figures for ASB 
and crime at Ward level had not been available, preventing targeted 
responses by CSP partners in affected Wards. Figures for ASB at 
Ward level had recently become available, and it was hoped that crime 
figures at Ward level would soon be available too. 
 
Members were reminded that Dartford and Gravesham formed the only 
joint CSP in the county, which gave the Partnership a unique 
opportunity to compare and contrast the effectiveness of policies to 
address crime and anti-social behaviour in each Borough over a 
number of key areas and plan accordingly. A new KCC strategy was 
focussed on the ‘contextual safeguarding’ for young adults outside the 
home environment in the context of gang membership and other 
elements of criminal exploitation, which parents could not directly 
control. The CSUs in each borough were forming Tactical Operation 
Groups (TOGs) with joint overarching aims, to identify the sources and 
locations of criminal activities affecting young adults. Recent CSP data 
had revealed that there was a higher rate of repeat victims in Dartford, 
than Gravesham, but it was too early to say whether this was a ‘blip’ or 
a developing pattern. Government funding had enabled a push to be 
made in the prevention and reduction of crime in the ‘Under 25’ cohort 
of offenders, with increased funding for Violence Reduction Units made 
available to KCC for joint working with the Police and the CSUs. 
Council initiatives had included the deployment of mobile CCTV 
cameras, addressing violent crime in nightclubs and shopping centres 
[abated during lock-down] and the provision of free first aid kits and 
training to Dartford’s shopping centres. Protecting vulnerable people 
was another Council initiative, given Dartford’s rapid change of cultural 
composition contained within its demographic growth, and recorded as 
the 7th highest in England. A project that been set up with the Migration 
Fund, chaired by the Strategic Director for Internal Services, with a 
survey of residents proposed, to inform a strategy going forward. The 
Committee would receive updates on the project’s progress at future 
meetings. 
 
In response to a variety of specific questions from Members, Officers 
confirmed the following points: 
 

 The Council’s programme of CCTV camera installation on lamp 
posts had been interrupted by KCC’s lamp post replacement 
programme. The new KCC lamp post model was lighter and 
could not bear the weight of a typical CCTV camera [approx. 3.7 
kilos]. Lamp post testing for load-bearing potential was 
expensive, estimated at £1,000 per post. KCC were examining 
group lamp post testing to defray costs, and the Council was 
exploring the possibility of reducing the weight of CCTV 
cameras with the manufacturer; 

Page 12Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

13 

 The Council’s CCTV camera operation to combat fly-tipping 
remained a Kent leader in terms of its operation and was not 
affected by the KCC lamp post issue. The cameras deployed by 
the Council’s Enforcement Manager and his team were of a 
different design and mounted covertly, with overt signage to 
warn the public that concealed cameras were in operation; 

 Further specific details of ‘Operation Ransom’ [p.3 of 2020 
Refresh – ASB Initiates, agenda p.45 refers] would be relayed to 
Members under the item on Performance [EXEMPT Appendix 
A].  

 
The Chairman thanked the CSM for his report and presenting the CSP’s 
Refresh (2020) document of the Partnership’s Community Safety Strategy 
(2019-2022). 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the report and the refreshed Dartford and 
Gravesham CSP’s Community Safety Strategy (2019-2022) document 
attached at Appendix A to the report.    

  
 

39. REGULATION 9 NOTICE  
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the contents of the Regulation 9 Notice [Forward 
Plan] for the period 15 July 2020 to 30 November 2020. 

 
40. KENT & MEDWAY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL (PCP) UPDATE;  

 
The Committee received a verbal update from Councillor R J Wells (Cabinet 
Portfolio Holder for Community Safety), in his role as Dartford representative 
on the Kent & Medway Police & Crime Panel (PCP). 
 
He confirmed that the February and June meetings of the PCP had been 
cancelled. The February meeting was, by tradition, held in reserve for a 
possible second budget meeting and often cancelled, and the June meeting 
had been cancelled following the Government lock-down measures 
announced to combat COVID-19. Given that the next meeting of the PCP was 
not scheduled until September 2020, he had requested an update on PCP 
activity from the PCC’s (Police and Crime Commissioner’s) Office, which had 
including the following key points: 
 

 The Commissioner’s office and Kent Police had been able to maintain 
levels of service and a visible community police presence during lock-
down; 

 In line with Government guidance for all organisations, Kent Police had 
moved non-frontline functions to online and home working; 

Page 13 Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

14 

 Demands for services had been monitored, with a significant demand 
anticipated for victim support services, due to a backlog of court cases. 

 
In terms of financial support for services to deal with short term income 
disruption, costs associated with changing working practices, and to address 
increases in demand during COVID-19 lockdown; a £25 million national fund 
had been set up by Government to combat Domestic Abuse (DA) and Sexual 
Violence (SV) services. Kent Police had received £625,000 of that national 
funding, half of which had been allocated to DA services already 
commissioned by Kent’s PCC. A further quarter was reserved for DA services 
due to be commissioned by the PCC, and the remaining quarter allocated to 
SV services, some of which were commissioned by the PCC and some not.  
 
The Commissioner had also set up a local emergency fund of £100,000 for 
any commissioned services that had experienced difficulties during the 
Coronus virus pandemic period. Services could apply for grants up to £10,000 
to cover reduced fundraising income, IT upgrades to provide services 
remotely, or to fund any new or increased services in specific response to 
COVID-19.  
  
The PCC’s Office had also confirmed that the Commissioner’s initiative to 
form ten new Police Cadet Units in Kent, including a new Unit in Dartford [Min. 
No. 25 refers] was still proposed, but taking longer than expected due to 
deliver, due to a shortage of volunteer leaders. The position was open to 
anyone over the age of 18 and Members were asked to encourage any 
suitable residents in their Wards to consider applying. An online Cadet 
Leader’s recruitment event was planned for 5 August 2020 [full details on 
Kent Police website], for applicants to register interest, or ask for more 
information. The Cabinet Member undertook to forward the link to the 
Committee Clerk for Members information and further dissemination to 
identified residents, as appropriate.  
 
The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member for his initiative in contacting the 
PCC’s Office and his consequent detailed verbal update to the Committee. 
 

41. COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2019-20 MUNICIPAL YEAR  
 
The covering report from the Committee Co-ordinator attached at Appendix A, 
a draft annual report document which summarised the work that had been 
undertaken by the Committee during the previous 2019/20 municipal year.  
 
The parameters of the Committee’s work were governed by its Terms of 
Reference (ToRs), Protocol, and Memorandum of Understanding with the 
Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Partnership (CSP). Copies of those 
documents were attached as Appendices B, C, and D respectively to the 
report. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Committee Co-ordinator for his comprehensive 
draft 2019/20 annual report and appendices, his general support of the 

Page 14Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

15 

Committee during the period under review, and recommended the draft report 
to Members for approval as submitted. 
 
He also thanked the Strategic Director (External Services) for her continued 
support and guidance to the Committee in the period under review, and all 
attending Community Safety Unit Officers for their reports to the Committee 
and attendance at meetings during the previous municipal year, to respond to 
Members’ questions and concerns. 
  
   RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members approve the draft 2019/20 Committee Annual Report 
(attached as Appendix A in the papers), for presentation to the General 
Assembly of the Council as submitted. 

 
42. REVIEW COMMITTEE'S WORK PLAN FOR 2020-21 MUNICIPAL YEAR 

AND BEYOND  
 
Members noted the report and published Work Plan for 2020-21 and beyond 
as submitted by the Committee Co-ordinator [Appendix A to the report], and 
following discussion, requested that further topics be added to the submitted 
Plan with the guidance and approval of the Strategic Director (External 
Services), as follows:  
 

 A presentation on Domestic Abuse Awareness from relevant CSP 
Partners (details to be confirmed);  

 Update on Telephone Fraud [February 2020] to include Cyber and 
Internet Fraud (Kent Trading Standards); 

 Presentation on the contribution of Environmental Health to tackling 
anti-social behaviour (Dartford/Sevenoaks Shared Service). 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
1. That Members note the contents of the Work Plan for 2020-21 and 

beyond (attached at Appendix A to the report); 
 

2. That the current Work Plan be updated, in consultation with the 
Strategic Director (External Services), to include the additional items 
recorded above, as appropriate. 

 
43. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS & PUBLIC  

 
The Chairman advised Members that under Section 100(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended); the virtual Committee proceedings 
would now go into closed session to consider the Dartford & Gravesham CSP 
Quarterly Performance report (July 2020), marked as Item A in the EXEMPT 
papers; and that the YouTube link relaying the proceedings to the public 
would now close.  
 

Page 15 Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

16 

The Chairman thanked all members of the public and press that may have 
been following the remote proceedings via YouTube, and advised that formal 
minutes of the proceedings would be published on the Council’s public 
website in due course. 
 
Following confirmation from the relevant Officer that the public link to 
YouTube had been closed, the Committee’s proceedings continued in closed 
session.  
 

44. DARTFORD & GRAVESHAM CSP QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE 
REPORT (JULY 2020)  
 
The covering report from the Community Safety Manager (CSM) attached the 
July 2020 Quarterly Performance Report [EXEMPT agenda Item A] produced 
by the Dartford & Gravesham Community Safety Partnership (CSP). The 
report detailed performance in relation to levels of crime and anti-social 
behaviour and other indicators, and the progress made by CSP Partners to 
combat it, set within the context of the COVID-19 pandemic. The report had 
been considered by the CSP at its meeting on 16 July 2020, and the 
Committee were asked to note its contents and comment accordingly. 
 
Members were reminded that an obligation of confidence arose in relation to 
the Committee’s discussion of CSP Performance reports, in that the data they 
contained was provided to the Council on an ‘In-Confidence’ basis. As a 
consequence, the Committee proceedings had gone into closed session. 
 
The CSM informed the Committee that the July 2020 Performance report 
[Item A EXEMPT papers refers] had specifically considered the CSP’s 
performance within the context of the COVID-19 pandemic, and been re-titled 
accordingly – ‘Performance, Progress and the Impact of Covid-19’. The format 
of the July 2020 performance report had also changed from the previous 
‘rolling year basis’ format; to a ‘year on year’ comparison model for the 
months of April/May 2019 to April/May 2020; in order to better benchmark 
the effects of the pandemic on the levels of crime and anti-social behaviour in 
both Boroughs.  
 
The July 2020 Performance report had also highlighted the way that the 
Dartford Community Safety Unit (CSU) had changed its priorities and re-
configured its operational model, to maintain effective partnership working to 
better support the Council’s humanitarian response to COVID-19. The 
challenges in the period under review had been significant for both the 
Council’s CSU Team and Kent Police, but had also produced benefits in 
terms of possible new partnership working to take forward, once the current 
pandemic was fully under control.  
 
The CSM gave Members a verbal summary of the key material and data from 
the EXEMPT papers and advised that the material had served to highlight the 
significant negative impact that the activities of Dartford’s night-time economy 
had previously had on the Borough’s crime figures. Since the onset of the 
COVID-19 pandemic and the Government’s lock-down measures [effectively 

Page 16Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

17 

closing the night-time economy]: the Borough had experienced significant 
reductions in the levels of violent crime (-22%), sex crimes (-34%) and a 
significant reduction in public disorder offences and burglary. This had 
contributed to a 22% reduction in overall crime in Dartford for the period 
April/May 2020 compared to April/May 2019. However, within those very 
positive figures, a significant increase in incidents of ASB (+154%) had been 
recorded in the Borough since the Government’s lock-down measures had 
come into effect. Kent Police had re-focused resources to tackle the ASB 
spike in Dartford, with the majority of incidents involving COVID-19 breaches 
in and from the home, and vehicle nuisance. The reduction in crime had given 
the police the opportunity to increase its levels of targeted, proactive patrolling 
which the CSM believed was an important factor when understanding the 
apparent increase in drugs and weapons offences, which should therefore be 
viewed in a positive light. The increase in police patrol patterns to combat 
ASB, had also enabled officers to better address a 14% increase in reported 
incidents of domestic abuse (DA).  
 
The CSM gave Members further details of how the CSU had redeployed its 
resources and staff, to better support the Council’s overall efforts to combat 
the effects of the Corona virus pandemic for Dartford’s residents. The 
Enforcement Manager and his team had assisted in the Council’s efforts to 
deliver food and essentials to the isolated and needy, and daily CSU briefings 
had been initiated involving all Council officers and representatives from CSP 
partners. DA Forum meetings had also been increased from quarterly to 
fortnightly, to enable better focus on operational challenges caused by 
lockdown, with an enhanced role for neighbourhood PCSO’s mooted. CSU 
staff had also continued their excellent working partnership with the Council’s 
Housing Officers to address the spike in ASB in the home environment during 
lock-down, and the Council’s Vulnerability Forum had increased its on-line 
operation and would continue to do so in the future. The CSU continued to 
work with Kent Police and landowners in the Greenhithe and Swanscombe 
areas of the Borough to combat ‘vehicle nuisance’ offences. Measures taken 
included increased CCTV camera coverage of ‘hot spots’, and measures to 
limit off-road access continued to be pursued with all parties. Kent Police had 
assigned a new ASB Officer to the area to assess current risks, but the 
preponderance of ‘out of Borough’ perpetrators, made the issue of ‘vehicle 
nuisance’ particularly difficult to solve. 
 
The District Commander (DC) supported the CSM in his positive comments to 
Members. He confirmed that following the onset on the Covid-19 pandemic 
and enforcement of the Government’s lock-down measures from late March 
2020, Dartford had experienced a dramatic decrease in street crime and 
residential burglaries. This had enabled Kent Police to concentrate on 
proactive policing in the Borough and respond to the spike in ASB by re-
deploying officers previously dedicated to patrolling in the hours of the night-
time economy. Police resources had also been deployed to respond to the 
increase in DA incidents, with victims forced to stay with perpetrators during 
lock-down a particular challenge. The spike in ASB offences during April and 
May had been primarily COVID-19 related, and involved house parties and 
‘noisy neighbour’ offences, teenage gatherings and encampments, parking 

Page 17 Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

18 

and drug offences. From a recorded high  of 770 offences in April/May; ASB 
offences had gradually fallen in Dartford in the succeeding weeks and months 
following the relaxation of the Government’s lock-down measures; with only 
51 offences recorded in July 2020 to date.  
 
The policing of ASB had been a significant area of work for the Dartford CSU 
Inspector and her team, and had required the use of all police powers. 
However, those powers had been deployed with a firm emphasis on policing 
by consent; to maintain good public and community relations with offenders 
warned rather than automatically criminalised; during what had been 
exceptionally challenging times for both residents and the police.  
 
North Kent Police had led all other Forces in England in its approach to ASB 
during lock-down, and the Kent Force as a whole, had also performed well in 
this respect. The DC added, that the Kent Chief Constable had undertaken to 
increase funding and resources for Dartford, to address the increased drugs 
and weapons activity that had been identified during COVID-19 lock-down. 
 
The Chairman thanked the CSM for his report and presentation of the CSP’s 
July 2020 performance report, and the District Commander for his additional 
comments and invited Members to pose questions.  
 
In response to subsequent specific questions from Members, the Strategic 
Director (External Services), the EARS/CSU Manager, the CSM and the 
District Commander and Community Inspector, confirmed the following points 
for the Committee: 
 

  ASB: Daily briefing sessions were held each morning in the Dartford 
CSU on a multi-agency basis. Offences committed across the Borough 
during the previous day and over-night, were tracked by the police and 
council officers, and formed part of the next morning’s briefing session, 
with the District Commander updated daily on all ASB matters. The 999 
and 101 response numbers remained the key tools for resident’s to 
seek help, and Members were encouraged to recommend the use of 
both services to their constituents to report all and any incidences of 
ASB, to enable the Police to track the cases and inform and update the 
daily ASB sessions held in the CSU each morning. In terms of Council 
or Police response to incidents of ASB, Members were advised that the 
Council was not a 24 hour response organisation, but that Kent Police 
was. Any incidents of ASB the police responded to overnight, would be 
picked up by Council officers as appropriate, at the daily CSU briefing 
the following morning. Police patrols had been specifically increased in 
Temple Hill and Swanscombe to combat a spike in ASB in those areas; 

 Ebbsfleet PCSO: the District Commander advised that he was due to 
meet the District Superintendent to sign-off the final paperwork on this  
new appointment on 30 July; 

 Dartford Heath Fires: these had historically occurred in Dartford 
during the summer months each year, but the Council’s focus on 

Page 18Agenda Item 3



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

WEDNESDAY 29 JULY 2020 
 
 

19 

combating COVID-19 had impacted on its measures to combat the 
phenomenon and warn residents appropriately, as in previous years.  

 
The newly appointed Dartford Community Police Inspector, Sarah Rivett, 
advised that it was not known whether the recent fires at Dartford Heath 
had been started deliberately, but Special Police Constables using drones 
had been deployed to investigate the problem, which was considered to be 
a local issue. She advised that she had taken up her appointment in June 
and that continuing to combat ASB (including the fires at Dartford Heath) 
would be the main focus of her Team’s efforts for the foreseeable future. 
 
The Chairman thanked all Officers and Kent Police representatives for 
their contribution to the debate and their positive responses to Members’ 
concerns. The trends in levels of crime and anti-social behaviour recorded 
in the CSP’s July 2020 Performance report, reflected the national trend for 
Police Forces and Council’s across England to strategically manage their 
resources to maintain performance during the COVID-19 pandemic. He 
asked that the excellent efforts of the Council’s CSU Officers and Kent 
Police, to effectively combat the levels of crime and anti-social behaviour 
in Dartford during the height of the pandemic and subsequently, be 
recorded in the Minutes with the Committee’s thanks. 
 
 
   RESOLVED: 
 
1. That Members note the report and the contents of the Dartford and 

Gravesham Community Safety Partnership Performance Report (July 
2020) attached as EXEMPT Appendix A to the report. 

 
 

 
The meeting closed at 4.35 pm 

 
  

 
 

Councillor C S McLean 
CHAIRMAN 

 
 
 

Page 19 Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



14 January 2021 - 31 May 2021 
 

1 of 2 

 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

LIST OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS – REGULATION 9 NOTICE 
 
This document lists all key decisions due  to be taken  in the forthcoming 4 months in accordance with the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. It also lists and contains particulars of 
any items where it is likely that the public will be excluded because consideration of the matter in public would disclose confidential of 
exempt information. The reasons for going into closed session are given in each case. An updated list will be published monthly. 
 
All decisions are made by Cabinet collectively. 
 
Cabinet Members: 
 
Councillor J A Kite, MBE, Portfolio: Leader & Housing 
Councillor C J Shippam, Portfolio: Deputy Leader 
Councillor Mrs A D Allen, MBE, Portfolio: Youth, Health & Wellbeing 
Councillor S H Brown, Portfolio: Waste & Environment 
Councillor A R Lloyd, Portfolio: Finance 
Councillor Mrs P A Thurlow, Portfolio: Arts & Culture 
Councillor R J Wells, Portfolio: Community Safety 
 
All of the reports contained in this list, where open to the public, will be published on the Council’s website www.dartford.gov.uk at least 5 
clear days before the day of the meeting or, if later, whenever they become available. All reports provide details of any background 
documents which have been relied upon to a material degree during production of the report, or relied upon when formulating 
recommendations or options for decision. Hard copies or extracts from these reports can be obtained on request by emailing 
memberservices@dartford.gov.uk. 
 
This notice supersedes all previous notices. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 7

http://www.dartford.gov.uk/
mailto:memberservices@dartford.gov.uk


 

2 of 2 
 

TITLE OF REPORT AND BRIEF 
SUMMARY OF MATTER TO BE 
DECIDED 

DATE OF 
CABINET/GAC 
MEETING OR 
PERIOD WITHIN 
WHICH THE 
DECISION WILL 
BE TAKEN AND 
BY WHOM 

WHO IS TO BE 
CONSULTED BEFORE 
TAKING THE 
DECISION AND HOW 

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS 

NAME, TITLE AND CONTACT 
DETAILS OF REPORT AUTHOR 

OPEN OR CLOSED 
(if closed the 
reason is specified) 

Co-Op Site Development 
 
To update members on progress 
with the Co-Op development, 
including the health hub, and to 
present options to Members to 
ensure the scheme remains viable. 
 

Cabinet 
28 Jan 2021 
 

  
 

Sarah Martin, Strategic Director 
(Internal Services) 
Tel: 01322 343632 
sarah.martin@dartford.gov.uk 

OPEN 

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 7



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

10 FEBRUARY 2021 
 
DARTFORD COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP (CSP)  
 

 
1. Summary 

 
1. To note the dissolution of the Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety 

Partnership and the formation of the Dartford Community Safety Partnership.  
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 

 That the dissolution of the Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety 
Partnership, the formation of the Dartford Community Safety Partnership, and 
its Terms of Reference at Appendix A to the report, be noted.  

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
3.1 The Dartford and Gravesham Community Safety Partnership has 

operated as a joint Community Safety Partnership (CSP) since 
2006/07.  

3.2 The arrangement has generally worked well, providing 
opportunities for collaboration on key pieces of work e.g. the 
annual strategic assessment, and for comparative challenge and 
sharing of best practise. It has minimised duplication of 
administrative effort by partner agencies.  

3.3 Nonetheless, Dartford and Gravesham are different places with 
different priorities and following a request from Gravesham 
Borough Council to the Police and Crime Commissioner, and the 
tacit agreement and/or acceptance of all partners, the joint CSP 
was dissolved in October 2020. This allowed the two Councils to 
establish district specific CSPs, better able to focus on local 
needs and priorities.  

3.4 The inaugural meeting of the Dartford CSP was held on 21 
January 2021. The statutory partners are as for the dissolved 
CSP, excluding Gravesham Borough Council. The Terms of 
Reference for the Dartford CSP are attached at Appendix A. 

3.5 This Committee’s relationship with the Dartford CSP will be 
unchanged from its relationship with the Dartford and Gravesham 
CSP. 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

The Council’s role in the Dartford CSP fulfils a statutory requirement and 
contributes to the Safer Communities Objective and Strategic Aim to 
create a safer Borough in which to work and live. 
 
 

Page 23 Agenda Item 8



CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
 

10 FEBRUARY 2021 
 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments 
 

Financial Implications None for this report 

Legal Implications Community Safety Partnerships were set up 
under Sections 5-7 of the Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 and the Crime and Disorder (Formulation 
and Implementation of Strategy) Regulations 
2007 with a remit to reduce crime, disorder and 
reoffending in a local area. 

The duty for Local Authorities to undertake 
scrutiny of local Community Safety Partnerships 
(CSPs) and the responsible authorities that 
comprise the CSP derives from the Police and 
Justice Act 2006. This Committee undertakes 
that function for the Council. 

Staffing Implications None for this report 

Administrative 
Implications 

None for this report 

Risk Assessment None 

 
6. N/A 

 
7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Dartford Community Safety Partnership’s Terms of 
Reference. 
 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
  Sheri Green 

Ext 3125 
External 
Services 
 

 

 

Page 24Agenda Item 8



  Appendix A 

DARTFORD COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
 
Introduction 
 
The Dartford Community Safety Partnership (CSP) is a multi-agency strategic group 
established under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.  The Act gave local agencies shared 
responsibility for developing plans to reduce crime, disorder and reoffending in their area.   
This partnership approach is built on the premise that no single agency can deal with, or be 
responsible for dealing with, complex community safety issues and that these issues can be 
addressed more effectively and efficiently through working in partnership. 
 
 
Agencies represented: 
 

 Kent Police* 

 Dartford Borough Council* including: 
o Leader of Dartford Borough Council and/or Cabinet Portfolio Member  
o Director Housing and Public Protection 
o Head of Housing  
o Enforcement and Regulatory Services Manager 
o Community Safety Manager 
o Community Safety Officer 

 Kent County Council*  

 Clinical Commissioning Group* 

 Probation Service* 

 Kent Fire and Rescue Service* 

 Voluntary Sector representative’s i.e. Victim Support and Neighbourhood Watch. 

 Other organisations as agreed by the Group 
 

*Denotes statutory partner 
 
Purpose of the Partnership: 
 

1. Keep an overview of crime and anti-social  behaviour  levels  across  the  
Borough and provide strategic direction where appropriate. 

2. To develop and oversee implementation of the Community Safety Strategy. 
3. To ensure CSP activity compliments the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Police 

and Crime Plan. 
4. Identify and bid for external sources of funding when and where available. 
5. Maintain contact and influence with countywide services. 
6. Promote the role of partners in preventing and tackling crime in the local  

Area. 
7. Ensure compliance with all statutory CSP  

responsibilities’ and keep abreast of emerging  national,  county  or  local  
            changes to policy or legislation affecting the Partnership. 

8. Oversee use and implementation of relevant powers, e.g. those relating to  
            the Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB), Crime and Policing Act 2014. 

9. Receive updates and provide strategic overview on the work of Dartford Vulnerability 
and Contextual Safeguarding (DVACS) Group and the Organised Criminal Gangs 
(OCG) group. 

10. When required, to ensure compliance with members’ statutory responsibility to 

Page 25 Agenda Item 8



  Appendix A 

provide information to Domestic Homicide Review Panels. 
11. When required, to provide scrutiny and oversight to the implementation of action 

plans produced by a Domestic Homicide Review report. 
12. Keep an overview of Community Trigger applications, coordinate the formation of a 

Panel to assess and monitor applications when necessary, and oversee the 
implementation of any recommendations made by the Panel. 

13. Take a leading role in tackling domestic abuse, modern slavery, promoting 
intelligence sharing between partners, tackling extremist views and delivering the 
anti-terrorism Prevent agenda.  

14. Promote Equality and community cohesion across the Borough, monitoring 
community tensions and the prevalence of hate crime. 

 
Governance and Scrutiny 
 

 The Community Safety Partnership will publish an annual Strategic Assessment 
setting out relevant data on crime in the local area. 

 It will also publish a 3 year Community Safety Strategy (refreshed annually) which 
outlines the partnership’s priorities. 

 The Community Safety Partnership shall be chaired, in the first instance by the 
Elected Leader of Dartford Borough Council. The Chair will be reviewed on an annual 
basis, commencing the first meeting of the 2022/23 municipal year. 

 The Vice –Chair, in the first instance, will the Police District Commander for Dartford. 
The Vice Chair will be reviewed on an annual basis, commencing the first meeting of 
the 2022/23 municipal year. The vice chair will chair meetings if the appointed chair is 
not available.   

 The partnership will be coordinated and administered by Officers from Dartford 
Borough Council. 

 The CSP will meet quarterly. 

 The CSP will receive scrutiny from Dartford Borough Council’s Crime and Disorder 
Overview and Scrutiny committee.  

 The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner will provide pre-approval scrutiny 
of grant applications as well as evaluate the value of activity undertaken by the 
partnership funded by any grants it has provided. 

 
Information Sharing 
 
All organisations represented on the partnership will be signatories of the Kent and Medway 
Information Sharing Agreement (K-MISA) 
 
The work of the CSP and its subgroups will each be subject to a Frequent Sharing Protocol 
as identified within the KMISA. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26Agenda Item 8



1 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

KENT AND MEDWAY POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel held Online 
on Tuesday, 8 September 2020. 
 
PRESENT: Mr P M Hill, OBE (Chairman), Mr Gurvinder Sandher (Vice-Chairman), 
Mr N J Collor, Cllr L Dyball (Substitute for Cllr P Fleming), Cllr P Feacey, 
Cllr F Gooch, Ms S Hamilton, Cllr Mrs J Hollingsbee, Cllr S Mochrie-Cox, 
Cllr R Palmer, Cllr M Rhodes, Cllr H Tejan, Cllr R Wells, Cllr G Hackwell, 
Mrs E Bolton and Cllr J Burden 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mr M Scott (Kent Police and Crime Commissioner), Mr A Harper 
(PCC's Chief Executive) and Mr Robert Phillips (PCC's Chief Finance Officer) 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr J Cook (Scrutiny Research Officer), Mr M Dentten 
(Democratic Services Officer) and Mrs A Taylor (Scrutiny Research Officer) 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
348. Virtual Meeting protocols  
(Item 2) 
 
1. The Clerk provided a verbal overview of the Protocol, highlighting legislation, 
etiquette, motions, amendments and voting as key areas. 
 
2. The Panel agreed to, as far as possible, accommodate the needs and 
technological capacity of all Panel members. 
 

RESOLVED that the Panel agreed to adopt the Virtual Meeting Protocols. 
 
349. Apologies and Substitutes  
(Item 3) 
 
1. Apologies were received from Cllr Clark, Cllr Fleming and Cllr Game. Cllr 
Dyball substituted for Cllr Fleming.   
 
350. Declarations of Interests by Members in Items on the Agenda for this 
Meeting  
(Item 4) 
 
1. Independent Members Mrs Bolton and Mr Sandher declared interests in 
relation to Item D1 and agreed to leave the meeting for the duration of the Item. 
 
351. Minutes of the Police and Crime Panel held on 6 February 2020  
(Item 5) 
 
1. Mrs Bolton asked the Commissioner to update the Panel on his progress in 

improving victim satisfaction, following the Panel’s previous concerns. The 

Commissioner confirmed that he had raised this issue with the Chief Constable and 

Page 27 Agenda Item 10



 

2 

expected improvements with the creation of a Crime Academy later this year which 

would improve case file quality. It was also confirmed that backlogs relating to 

Investigation Management Units had been cleared. He further emphasised that a 

focus on improving rural victim satisfaction and community engagement was a 

current priority. 

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 6 February 2020 were an 
accurate record and that they be signed by the Chair. 
 
352. PCC Annual Report 2019/20  
(Item B1) 
 
1. The Commissioner began the summary of his report by paying tribute to the 

Panel for its rigorous scrutiny, his Office for producing the report as well as Police 

Officers, staff and volunteers for the physical sacrifices they had made in the last 

year. 

 

2. He noted that the report reflected two stark periods, both before and during the 

onset of the Covid-19 pandemic. The Commissioner confirmed that from January 

2020 the Chief Constable and he had focused on multi-agency liaison in the event of 

a possible pandemic. 

 

3. The Commissioner confirmed that Officer recruitment had remained a priority 

during the 2019/20 financial year, with Officer numbers surpassing 2010 levels by the 

conclusion of the year, he noted further that the recruitment of Police Community 

Support Officers (PCSOs) had also continued.  

 

4. In outlining the changes in crime levels in Kent, the Commissioner highlighted 

the Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) crime data integrity audit as 

an important event nationally, with many areas witnessing increases in crime levels, 

he stated however that Kent had experienced a 5% fall in crime during 2019/20.  

 

5. The Commissioner explained to the Panel that he had commissioned a range 

of new projects, focusing on violence reduction he commended the work of the many 

charities which had delivered these projects and had engaged school children across 

the county in the process. In addition to this he outlined the new work untaken to 

support Kent’s youth citing the Medway Task Force as an effective multi-agency 

service. 

 

6. The Commissioner paid his respects to the families who had lost loved ones 

as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, those in recovery, the work of Kent Police 

Officers and staff and the overall cooperation of the people of Kent during the Covid-

19 Lockdown. 

 

7. Members asked a range of questions in relation to the Police and Crime 

Commissioner’s Annual Report. Key issues raised by the Panel and responded to by 

the Commissioner included the following: 

 

 How had Kent Police acted on reports of anti-social behaviour to strengthen 

public trust concerning reporting low-level crime. The Commissioner confirmed that 

Page 28Agenda Item 10



 

3 

the creation of Task Forces in Margate, Medway and Maidstone had made multi-

agency responses to anti-social behaviour more efficient and effective. He further 

highlighted the important work of newly created crime prevention PCSOs who worked 

with communities to improve anti-social behaviour prevention services. 

 

 How had increased Officer and PCSO numbers translated into better service 

delivery, especially for those from vulnerable backgrounds. The Commissioner 

identified the newly formed vulnerability investigation team, which supported victims 

of domestic abuse and sexual violence as well as the strengthened Fraud and 

economic crime team and mental health team, as three examples of services made 

possible through increased Officer numbers.  

 

 What had the greatest challenges been in holding Kent Police to account 

during the pandemic? The Commissioner stated that the greatest difficulty in holding 

the force to account had been balancing priorities and resources, tackling rural crime 

had been a key issue though the rural crime team had been bolstered to respond to 

this challenge. 

 

 How could perceptions that anti-social behaviour was not a serious crime be 

changed? The Commissioner reassured the panel that anti-social behaviour would 

be taken more seriously with the increase in Officer and PCSO numbers in the 

community, stating that anti-social behaviour often escalated to become violent 

crime, as such improved Officer numbers and multi-agency Task Forces would stifle 

escalations. 

 

 Following the success of multi-agency efforts in tackling anti-social behaviour 

could the Commissioner confirm that he would continue to invest in nights of actions 

and other similar projects? The Commissioner confirmed that he currently had no 

intent to end the partnership work currently undertaken to tackle anti-social 

behaviour. 

 

 Had 101 response times continued to fall? The Commissioner confirmed that 

withstanding spikes around Christmas and parts of summer 101 response times had 

remained below 90 seconds.  

 

 Would the Commissioner work with the criminal justice system to lobby for 

Police and Crime Commissioners to have greater criminal justice powers? The 

Commissioner informed the Panel that he had argued that Commissioners should 

have greater powers in relation to probation and rehabilitation, confirming that the 

Home Office had begun reviewing Police and Crime Commissioner powers. He 

invited the Panel’s involvement in the process and emphasised their importance 

should further powers be granted.  

RESOLVED that the content of the report be noted. 
 
353. COVID-19 Emergency Funding  
(Item B2) 
 
1. The Commissioner introduced the report on Kent Police’s Covid-19 

Extraordinary Funding, he confirmed that the Ministry of Justice had made additional 

Page 29 Agenda Item 10



 

4 

funds available for the support of victims and survivors of domestic abuse during the 

pandemic. He added that he ensured that Kent’s funding had been used to support 

ongoing projects, charities and work with new partners. 

 

2.  The Commissioner highlighted an example of positive feedback from a user of 

a Children’s Domestic Abuse Counselling Service which had been commissioned 

with the extraordinary Ministry of Justice funding. 

 

3. Members asked the Commissioner to what extent Covid-19 had had a 

negative impact on Kent Police’s finances. The Commissioner confirmed that he 

anticipated a £6m loss in income due to the predicted loss in Council Tax revenue. 

Though he noted Kent Police’s financial resilience to this issue, when compared with 

other public institutions in Kent, as the majority of Kent Police’s funding had been 

received directly from Central Government. Regarding Personal Protective 

Equipment (PPE) he reassured the Panel that all costs to Kent Police had been 

reimbursed by the Department of Health and Social Care. 

 

4. The Commissioner thanked many Kent businesses for their support in 

supplying Kent Police during the pandemic. 

 

5. Members asked the Commissioner how he thought the pandemic would 

impact rates of domestic abuse in the long-term. The Commissioner confirmed that 

Kent Police had seen normal levels of demand relating to domestic abuse during the 

pandemic, with 5-6% spikes, he then stated that reports of child sexual exploitation 

and domestic abuse may increase once individuals are able to talk to professionals, 

following a further easing of social restrictions. 

 

6. The Commissioner was asked by Members how he had monitored the 

effectiveness of the grant funded services. He confirmed that all services are subject 

to existing monitoring protocol which include regular reporting requirements, 

information is also fed back to the Ministry of Justice. The Commissioner also 

assured the Panel that there had not been any issues with the quality of the grant 

supported services to date. 

 

RESOLVED that the content of the report be noted. 
 
354. Mental Health - Verbal Update  
(Item B3) 
 
1. The Commissioner provided a verbal update indicating that as a result of 

Lockdown the overall demand on Kent Police in relation to mental health had 

decreased, citing the reduction in Section 136 Mental Health Act detentions as a key 

indicator of the trend, overall Section 136 detentions had increased in recent years 

until the end of the 2019/20 financial year. He noted further that the decrease in 

incidents and detentions was likely the result of less third-party reports from the 

public environment rather than a decrease in Mental Health issues. 

 

2. Regarding future trends, the Commissioner stated that restrictions to public life 

remained and will likely continue the trend of an overall decrease in the number of 

Section 136 incidents and detentions.  

Page 30Agenda Item 10



 

5 

 

3. The Commissioner highlighted additional services which had supported public 

mental health in Kent and Medway, commending the multi-agency support he cited 

the four new NHS England funded ‘Safe Havens’, Kent and Medway NHS and Social 

Care Partnership Trust’s extended 7 day a week Mental Health Service and Kent and 

Medway’s 24/7 help lines. 

 

4. He confirmed that his Office had working with the Department of Health and 

Social Care on ways to integrate volunteer responders into Kent Police’s mental 

health support. 

 

5. The Commissioner affirmed that he had met with the NSPCC, Department of 

Health and Social Care, Home Office and NHS England to discuss rejuvenating the 

Mental Health Crisis Care Concordat nationally. He also asserted that he participated 

on 25 June 2020 in a virtual panel meeting involving the Chair of the Medway Youth 

Council, South Kent Mind and Dads Unlimited which is publicly available via the Kent 

Police and Crime Commissioner’s YouTube Channel. 

 

6. The Chair asked the Commissioner whether any information relating to the 

effectiveness of the Safe Havens in reducing the demand on Kent Police existed. The 

Commissioner confirmed that no information currently existed due to the service’s 

age, though endeavoured to update the Panel following his receipt of this information. 

RESOLVED that the content of the update be noted. 
 
355. Officer Recruitment - verbal update  
(Item B4) 
 
1.  The Commissioner began by thanking the Panel for its continued support of 

Kent Police’s recruitment initiatives, confirming that:  

 The recruitment of Officers had continued, with shortlisting, briefings and 

interviews being conducted virtually.  

 Kent Police were an early adopter of the College of Policing’s Online 

Assessment Centre.  

 Q&A sessions as well as School, University and Military recruitment days had 

taken place online.  

 Social media engagement with recruitment materials had remained strong.  

 

2. The Commissioner confirmed that Officer recruitment will meet the Home 

Office’s requested uplift by October 2020, this will be ahead of the 31 March 2021 

deadline. He continued by highlighting that the ratio of Officers joining Kent Police 

from a Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) background had increased as had 

the number of women, both as new recruits and through the Detective Investigate 

First Scheme. He confirmed that there are three further Officer intakes planned in 

2020/21, October, January, March, though budgetary restrictions will prevent 

recruitment at full capacity.   

 

3. Members asked a range of questions in relation to Officer Recruitment. Key 

issues raised by the Panel and responded to by the Commissioner included the 

following: 

Page 31 Agenda Item 10



 

6 

 How the Commissioner is holding the Chief Constable to account regarding 

the support of Black communities and the recruitment of Officers from within these 

communities? The Commissioner affirmed that recent successful engagement had 

come from the involvement of the Positive Action Team in collaboration with 

Recruitment Officers, though maintained that more will be done to address what was 

a national problem and that the Chief Constable will be held to account through 

Performance and Delivery Boards.  

 The current levels of Officer retention and turnover. The Commissioner 

confirmed that in the 2019/20 financial year 5% of recruits left Kent Police. Stating 

further that Officer sickness rates during Lockdown were between 2 and 3%, far 

lower than the anticipated level of 10%, equally retention was strong as many 

Officers delayed retirement during the same period. 

 The primary reasons Officers leave Kent Police. The Commissioner asserted 

that retirement remained the greatest factor in Officers leaving Kent Police, finances, 

working hours and medical retirements were common but lesser factors in Officer 

retention.  

RESOLVED that the content of the update be noted. 
 
356. Independent Co-optee arrangements  
(Item D1) 
 
Mrs Bolton and Mr Sandher left the meeting for the duration of this Item.  
 
1. The Chair introduced the Item outlining the intention to reappoint Mrs Bolton 

and Mr Sandher as Independent Co-optee Members of the Panel for a further year, 

to reflect the Commissioner’s term, following the extension of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner’s term for a single year as a result of the Coronavirus Act 2020 as 

enacted on 25 March 2020. 

 

2. Members requested clarification on whether the extension would affect future 

Independent Member term lengths following the Police and Crime Commissioner’s 

election. The Clerk confirmed that pending confirmation on the regulation of the 

Police and Crime Commissioner election cycle, it will be the intension that 

Independent Member terms align with the Police and Crime Commissioner’s term. 

RESOLVED that the Panel agreed: 
a) To extend the term of appointment of the current Independent Members until 
November 2021, noting that prior to this date an open application process, will be 
held; 
b) amend the Panel’s Terms of Reference accordingly as set out above; and 
c) delegate to Panel Officers, in consultation with the Panel Chair, authority to make 
decisions and take other actions as necessary to facilitate the required recruitment 
process in 2020 and on occasions as may arise; including but not limited to, the 
development of recruitment packs, eligibility criteria and the establishment of the 
necessary appointments sub-committee. 
d) To consider the future term length of Independent Members following confirmation 
of the regulation of Police and Crime Commissioner electoral terms. 
 
357. Future work programme  
(Item D2) 

Page 32Agenda Item 10



 

7 

 
Mrs Bolton and Mr Sandher returned to the meeting. 
 
1. The Panel agreed that the Commissioner provide a report concerning Kent 

Police’s response to the Covid-19 pandemic and their involvement with the Kent 

Resilience Forum to the 8 December 2020 Kent and Medway Police and Crime Panel 

meeting. 

 

2. The Clerk notified the Panel that the work programme for the February 

meeting of the Panel contains the statutory requirements relating to the Safer in Kent 

Plan, Budget proposal and Annual Panel Report. 

RESOLVED that the work programme be noted. 
 
358. Questions to the Commissioner  
(Item ) 
 
Question 1: 
Can the Commissioner please advise the Panel whether, as part of holding to the 
Chief Constable to Account for delivering the ‘fight crime and anti-social behaviour’ 
Policing Priority, he is satisfied that Kent Police have put appropriate systems in 
place to make best use of CCTV and other video evidence provided by third parties 
(including Local Authority CCTV) to support investigations and prosecutions?  
(Richard Palmer – Swale Borough Council) 
 
1. The Commissioner stated that Kent Police did not have sufficient systems in place 

to make the best use of CCTV and third-party video evidence, though confirmed 

that Kent Police in collaboration with the other forces of the Seven Force Strategic 

Collaboration Programme are procuring a CCTV and personal video sharing 

system, to be used by members of the public to share footage with Kent Police, 

the pilot for this project will run until March 2021.  

 

Question 2: 
How is the PCC actively working with Mental Health and Domestic Abuse agencies in 
preparation for the expected increase in MH/DA referrals especially in children and 
young people when they return to school and will you make some funds available for 
CSPs should there be a noticeable rise in the area? 
(Jenny Hollingsbee – Folkestone and Hythe District Council) 
 
1. The Commissioner confirmed that Kent Police have been cooperating with a 

range of sexual violence and domestic abuse charities throughout Lockdown as 

set out in his report on Covid-19 Emergency Funding, confirming that he will lobby 

the Ministry of Justice to extend funding for these services beyond 31 October 

2020. Regarding mental health the Commissioner cited Safe Havens as a key 

resource in tackling future increases in mental health service demand. He further 

cited Operation Encompass as an important engagement platform for children, 

with its campaigns to raise awareness and provide advice to schools regarding 

domestic abuse. 

 

Question 3: 

Page 33 Agenda Item 10



 

8 

The ASB statistics reported by Kent Police show a rise however it is clear that some 
of this has been Covid-19 related. Will the PCC commit to looking at the data and 
categories of recording to ensure that not only are all data accurate but they also 
meet the test for both quality and qualitative as well as quantity and quantitative? 
(Shane Mochrie-Cox – Gravesham Borough Council) 

 

1. The Commissioner confirmed that there are national crime recording standards 

which rate the consistency in the recording of crime data, the national standard for 

incident recording sets out when an incident should be recorded by the Police. 

During Covid-19 additional guidance had been provided by the Home Office to 

ensure that anti-social behaviour incidents were recorded correctly, forces were 

required to return data on a weekly basis. Further to this the Commissioner 

confirmed that 9% of anti-social behaviour had been tagged as Covid-19 related 

in March 2020, with rates reaching 55% in April, 48% in May, 16% in June and 

6% in July.   

 
 
 

Page 34Agenda Item 10



                

CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
10 February 2021 

 

 

WORK PROGRAMME: 2021- 22 MUNICIPAL YEAR and BEYOND 
 

 
1. Summary 
 
1.1 To review the rolling Work Programme for the 2021-22 municipal year and 

beyond, last considered by Members on 29 July 2020 [Min. No. 42 refers].  
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
  
2.1  That the updated draft Work Plan (attached as Appendix A to this report) be 

approved, subject to any further amendments/additions Members may wish 
to make in Committee, with the guidance of the Strategic Director (External 
Services). 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 
3.1  The Committee is responsible for setting its own work programme under the 

terms of its Protocol [Section K1-3 dated June 2019].   
 

3.2     An updated draft Work Plan is attached at Appendix A to this report for 
Members consideration. 
 

3.3     Topics noted by Members on 29 July 2020 [Min. No. 42 refers] for possible 
inclusion in the Committee’s rolling Work Programme  going forward, but as 
yet unallocated include: 
 

 Update on enforcement measures taken by agencies to 
combat County Lines’ activity by criminal gangs [Min. No. 25 of 
February 2019 refers]; 

 Presentation on Domestic Abuse Awareness from relevant 
CSP partner (details to be confirmed); 

 Presentation on the contribution of Environmental Health in 
tackling anti-social behaviour [Dartford/Sevenoaks Shared 
Service] - deferred from February 2021. 

 
 

4.   Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
4.1     Scrutiny of the responsible local authorities [in the discharge of their crime 

and disorder functions] through the provision of an agreed Work Plan, should 
lead to an increase in public confidence, a reduction in anti-social behaviour 
(ASB) and help to meet the Safer Community Corporate Objectives (SC1 
and SC2).  

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 

Page 35 Agenda Item 11



                 

CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 
10 February 2021 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment Reduction in the incidents of crime 
and disorder and ASB in Dartford 
Town Centre and environs. 

 
 

6.   Appendix 
 

Appendix A: Updated draft rolling Work Programme for 2021-22 municipal 
cycle and beyond; 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
 
Documents 
consulted 

Date File 
Ref 

Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

Crime and 
Disorder (O&S) 
Agenda and 
Minutes  July 
2020, ToRs and 
Protocol 

January 2021  David Hook 
01322 343276 

Democratic  
Services 
SD(ES) 

N/A 

 
 
 

Page 36Agenda Item 11



Appendix A 

 

CRIME and DISORDER (Overview & Scrutiny) COMMITTEE 
  

Draft Work Programme for the 2021-22 Municipal Cycle and 
Beyond 

 
Background: 
 
On a statutory basis to: 
 

 Consider the Dartford [formerly the Dartford & Gravesham] Community 
Safety Partnership (CSP’s) annual Strategic Assessment (SA) 
document; 
 

 Consider the Dartford [formerly the D&G] CSP’s Community Safety 
Strategy and annual Refresh documents. 

 

On a discretionary basis and with the prior agreement of the 
Dartford Community Safety Partnership (CSP) as appropriate, to 
review the contributions made by the Partnership’s agencies to its 
aims. 
 
Plus: 
 

 To consider the CSP’s mid-term Performance Report; 

 To receive updates from the Council’s representative on the Kent & 
Medway Police and Crime Panel (PCP) and to note the Panel’s 
published Minutes when available; 

 To receive a Dartford Town Against Crime (D-TAC) Annual Review; 

 To consider topics drawn-down via the Chairman on an ad-hoc basis 
with the agreement of the Strategic Director (External Services); 

 To consider discretionary topics as agreed by the Committee under the 
guidance of the Strategic Director (External Services) 
 

The Committee’s Work Programme is subject to review at each meeting. 
Discretionary items may be rescheduled and new items added in accordance 
with the Committee’s wishes and the guidance of the Strategic Director 
(External Services).  
 
A draft Work Plan for the 2021-22 municipal cycle and beyond is set out 
overleaf for Members’ consideration.  

Page 37 Agenda Item 11



Appendix A 

 

 

Crime and Disorder (Overview & Scrutiny) Committee 
 

Draft Work Programme for the 2021-22 Municipal Year  
& Beyond 

 
 

2020-21: Winter Meeting – 10 February 2021 
 

 Dartford Community Safety Partnership (CSP) 

 PCP Update; 

 Draft Dartford [formerly Dartford & Gravesham] CSP Strategic 
Assessment 2020; 

 Presentation by Kent County Council Trading Standards: Fraud in 
times of COVID-19; 

 Consider draft Committee Work Programme and Timetable for 2021-22 
Municipal Year and Beyond 
 

2021-22 Summer Meeting – 28 July 2021 
 

 Dartford Community Safety Plan 2021 Refresh 

 PCP Update 

 D-TAC Annual Report  

 Dartford CSP Performance Report – July 2021 

 Committee’s Annual Report for 2020-21 Municipal Year 

 Review Committee’s Rolling Work Programme for 2021-22 and Beyond 
 

2021/22 Winter Meeting – 9 February 2022 
 

 Dartford CSP Strategic Assessment 2021 

 PCP Update 

 Present draft Committee Work Programme & Timetable for 2022-23 
Municipal Year and Beyond 

 
2022/23 Summer Meeting – 27 July 2022 
 

 Dartford Community Safety Plan 2022 Refresh 

 PCP Update 

 D-TAC Annual Report  

 Dartford CSP Performance Report – July 2022 

 Committee’s Annual Report for 2021-22 Municipal Year 

 Review Committee’s Rolling Work Programme for 2022-23 and Beyond 
 
 

Democratic Services January 2021  

Page 38Agenda Item 11



Covering CONFIDENTIAL 
CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 

10 February 2021 
 
DARTFORD COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP STRATEGIC 
ASSESSMENT 2020 

 
1. Summary 

 
1. To receive the Dartford Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 

for 2020.  
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1  That the Dartford Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment 2020, 
in the confidential Appendix to the report, be noted.  

2.2  That the priorities identified in the Strategic Assessment 2020, as agreed by the 
Dartford Community Safety Partnership at its meeting on 21 January 2020, be 
noted.  

2.3  That the Dartford Community Safety Partnership’s decision to adopt the 
recommendations contained within the Strategic Assessment 2020 into the 
current Community Safety Plan (2020-2023), be noted.    

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
Under the Committee’s Terms of Reference, and as an Overview 
function, the Committee is required to consider the annual Strategic 
Assessment in connection with the discharge by the Community Safety 
Partnership, of its crime and disorder functions. This Strategic 
Assessment represents the first to consider the Dartford Community 
Safety Partnership (CSP) as a stand-alone body, following the agreed 
separation from Gravesham in 2020.  

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

Member review of the CSP’s annual Strategic Assessment contributes 
to the Safer Communities Objective and Strategic Aim to create a safer 
Borough in which to work and live. 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments* 
 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None  

Administrative 
Implications 

None 

Risk Assessment Member comment on the proposals as set out in 
the annual Strategic Assessment should help to 
focus the CSP’s efforts on ensuring a safer 
community for Dartford residents. 

Page 39 Agenda Item 12



Covering CONFIDENTIAL 
CRIME AND DISORDER (OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY) COMMITTEE 

10 February 2021 
 

 

6. Obligation of Confidence 
An obligation of confidence arises in relation to the Strategic Assessment 
2020 document (Appendix A to this report) in that the data was provided 
to the Council on an ‘In-Confidence’ basis.  Appendix A will therefore be 
considered in the EXEMPT part of the Agenda marked as Item A. 
 

7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Dartford Community Safety Partnership’s Strategic 
Assessment 2020 [Item A in EXEMPT papers] 
 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
Dartford CSP Draft Strategic 
Assessment 2020 

February 
2021 

Mark Salisbury 
Ext 3339 

External 
Strategic  
Community 
Safety/ 
EARS 
CSU 

Obligation 
of 
Confidence 

 

Page 40Agenda Item 12



Document is Restricted

Page 41 Agenda Item A
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 29 July 2020
	7 Regulation 9 Notice (Forward Plan)
	8 Dartford Community Safety Partnership (CSP)
	Item 10 Appendix A CSP Terms Of Reference (002)

	10 Kent & Medway Police and Crime Panel (PCP) Update
	11 Review of Committee Work Plan for the 2021-22 Municipal Year and Beyond
	Item11 Appendix A Committee Work Plan 2021-22

	12 Dartford Community Safety Partnership (CSP) Strategic Assessment 2020
	A Dartford Community Safety Partnership (CSP) Strategic Assessment 2020

